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Date

____ Determined Eligible - National Register

___ Determined Not Eligible - National Register
____Determined Eligible - State Register

__ Determined Not Eligible - State Register

_ Need Data

___ Contributes to Eligible National Register District

Initials

Noncontributing to Eligible National Register District

OAHP 1403

1. Resource Number: 5DA.1258

2. Temporary Resource Number: 749

3, County: Douglas

4. City: "Castle Rock

5. Historic Name: Van Lopek Residence

6. Current Building Name: Castle Electrology Clinic

7. Building Address: 422 Elbert Street

8. Owner Name and Address: Jennifer C. Crumm, 422 Elbert Street, Castle Rock, CO 80104
44, National Register Eligibility: Not Eligible

44A. Local Landmark Eligibility: Eligible
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Il. GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

9. PM: 6TH Township: 8 Range: 67W
1/4 of NW 1/4 of SW 1/4 of NE 1/4 of NW of Section: 11
10. UTM Reference Zone: 13 Easting: 511835 Northing: 4358322
11. USGS Quad Name: Castle Rock South Map Scale: 7.5' MapYear:  1965/1994
12. Lot: 12 Block: 14 Addition:  Town of Castle Rock
12A. Historic Neighborhoods: Central Downtown
Downtown Conservation Area: N/A
13. Boundary Description: The building is bounded on the west by Elbert Street; on the north by Fifth
Street; on the east by an alley; and on the south by the Castle Rock Depot
Museum(5DA.216).
ll. ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION
14. Building Plan: irregular Plan
15. Dimensions in Feet: 42'x 23'
16. Stories: two
17. Wall Material: Wood/Horizontal Siding Wood/Shingle
18. Roof Configuration: Front Gabled Roof
19. Roof Material: Other Roof Materials
20. Special Features: Porch
21. Architectural Description:

This is a two-story, front gable residence. It historically was a single story bungalow, but has recently been
“improved and enlarged”. The building is clad in mostly non-historic horizontal wood siding with a composite
tile roof. Parts of the building still have the historic shingle siding.

East Elevation:This elevation has a front gable square bay on the second floor with four individual 2/1 wood
windows. There is a 3/1 wood window to the south and a partially enclosed porch to the right. Below there is
four more 2/1 wood windows centered on the elevation with two aluminum paneled doors at either end. There
is a hipped roof extending the entire length of the elevation on the first floor. There is shingle siding above a
green horizontal band and horizontal wood siding below on the first floor. Above on the second floor, the
cladding is non-historic horizontal wood siding.

South Elevation: The historic house had wood shingle siding and when the roof was “popped”, the new second
floor was clad with horizontal wood siding with a wood trim board between the two finishes. The east end of the
elevation has a cross gable extension. There are four 2/1 wood windows on the first and second floor of the
cross gable extension that are identical to the windows on the east elevation. The side elevation of the
extension has a 3/1 wood window. The main body of the house has two historic 3/1 double hung wood windows
on the east end and then two smaller single lite windows on the west end. Below the shingle siding on the first
floor, there is horizontal wood siding.

West Elevation: This elevation is the primary entrance. Itis a front gable with a hipped porch roof attached. The
porch has two large wood shingle sided columns at either corner and low solid walls clad in horizontal wood
siding. There are concrete steps up to the wood porch. There is a historic wood paneled door with four narrow
lites above. To the right of the door are four historic 2/1 double hung wood windows. Above (the new addition)
there are four 3/1 single hung windows.
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22. Architectural Style: Bungalow
23. Landscape or special setting features:
There is public parking on the west elevation with a grass yard and several evergreen and deciduous (new) trees
planted. There is a large deciduous tree on the north and south elevation. The east elevation is concrete paving
for parking.
24. Associated buildings, features, or objects:
Garage:The garage is primarily unchanged. It is a front gable structure with beveled horizontal siding and a new
composite shingle roof. The entrance is on the north with a double wide aluminum replacement garage door.
IV. ARCHITECTURAL HISTORY
25. Date of Construction: Estimate: Actual: 1920
Source of Information: Record Journal of Douglas County, January 30, 1920, Front Page.
26. Architect: Unknown
Source of Information: N/A
27. Builder: Unknown
Source of Information: N/A
28. Original Owner: Herbert Stewart

29.

30. Original Location:

Source of Information:

Record Journal of Douglas County, January 30, 1920, Front Page.

Construction History:

1920
1920 - 1986
1986 - 2005
1996 - 2007
2006

Building was constructed.

Front stair walls were removed.

Secondary entrance door installed on north elevation.

East covered porch was constructed encompassing two other smaller additions.
Second floor addition was constructed along with cross gable south addition.

Yes Date of Move:

V. HISTORICAL ASSOCIATIONS

31
33.
34.
35.

Original Use:

Domestic/Single Dwelling 32. Intermediate Use: Domestic/Single Dwelling

Current Use: Commerce/Trade/Professional

Site type(s):

Single Family Residence, Commercial Offices

Historic Background:

1920 John C. Moore purchased from John Dillon

1920- 1937 George Herbert Stewart

1937-1946 Marshall E. Benn

1946 - 1947 Dorothy Clugy - wife of Ralph Clugy who owned Prairie Canyon Ranch, a Douglas County Landmark.
1947 - 1964 John M. and Vivian V. Yowell

1964 - 1974 Vivian V. Yowell

1974-1976 Truman V. Yowell (wife was Mary M. Yowell)
1976 - 1978 Louis J. and Josephine A. Blanc

1978- 1979 William S. and Kathryn A. Gray

1979-1986 William S. Gray

1986 - 1988 William A. Field

1988 - 1997 William E. Murray

1997 - Present

Jennifer C. Crumm

The original owner of the land was John C. Moore. According to the Record Journal of Douglas County, the house
was being constructed for him, but he sold the property before it was completed to George Herbert Stewart.
The article further states that Moore contracted for another site and the construction for that house would
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commence in the near future. Herbert Stewart had been living on a ranch he owned prior to purchasing this
property and once he purchased this property, he leased his ranch to Eddie Wolfensberger.

George Herbert Stewart was the son of George Patrick Stewart who owned the historic "Castle Rock" and the
Santa Fe Quarry from which many of the Castle Rock buildings are built. George Patrick Stewart was a County
Surveyor (20 years) and County Treasurer (3 terms) and was part owner of the Bank of Douglas County. His
father built and owned the stone house on the corner of Front Street and Highway 86 and called it "The Maples"
(5DA. ??7?). The family, including George Herbert, lived in this house during the school year with four other
siblings. The rest of the year, they lived at The Springs Ranch, west of the Santa Fe Quarry. When George Patrick
died in 1943, his sons inherited ownership of "The Rock".

George Herbert was born on The Springs Ranch and was the oldest son of George Patrick and Amelia Curtis
Mclnroy. George ran the ranch for his father and also worked at the Frink Creamery. On September 9, 1908, he
married Margaret Grout, daughter of Newton S. Grout and rented the Jackson Creek Ranch from her mother. In
1914, he purchased his own ranch known as the Stevens Place on West Plum Creek. In 1920, he purchased this
house because his wife was not well and he began working at the Bank of Douglas County. When Mrs. Stewart
regained her health, they moved back to the ranch and leased the house to the Van Lopek Family around 1921,
When his wife passed away in 1956, he moved to Englewood to live with his daughter, Margaret and her
husband Marshall Benn. A few months later, they moved to Beverly Hills and built a home where he lived until
he had a stroke in 1965. He spent the last two years of his life in the Silver State Nursing Home and died in 1967.

George H. Stewart was on the Douglas County School Board of Lone Tree School and the Douglas County High
School and was the President of the Douglas County Livestock Association for many years. He led the effort to
electrify West Plum Creek and get a mail route at Beverly Hills. He was a member of the Douglas Lodge No 153,
A. F. and A. M., a Past Patron of Martha Chapter No. 135, Order of the Eastern Star and the first 50 year member
of the Sunflower Grange.

In 1937, George Stewart sold the house to his son-in-law, Marshall Benn. The Van Lopeks, who owned the Van
Lopeks Drug Store on Wilcox Street, lived in the house for approximately ten years before moving to another
location. As stated above, Margaret Ethel Stewart was married to Marshall E. Benn. They married on September
14, 1927 in Littleton, Colorado. Marshall Benn was the only son of Joe and Hattie Benn. He was born on July 4,
1906 in Denver. Marshall and Margaret lived in Douglas County most of their lives, but were living in Fountain in
El Paso County in the 1930s. He was working for the State of Colorado as a tractor driver doing road
maintenance. They returned to Castle Rock and Douglas County and in 1936 he opened his own garage in Castle
Rock, which remained open until World War Il when he went to work for the government. The location is
uncertain, but it was the Standard Garage and he was a lessee. It is presumed that Marshall and his wife lived at
this location, which they purchased in 1937. Marshall and Margaret were both well known citizens in Castle
Rock. Marshall was on the Bishop's Committee at St. Phillips Episcopal Church; he was a member of the Douglas
Lodge No 152 A. F. and A. M. and a past master; a member of Colorado Consistory No 1; and a past patron of
Martha Chapter No 135 Order of the Eastern Star. He also served on the volunteer fire department and was a
deputy sheriff of Douglas County for seven years. He died on June 4, 1977 and is buried at Bear Canon Cemetery
with his family.

Marshall E. Benn sold the property to Dorothy Clugy in 1946. Her husband was the owner of the well known
Prairie Canyon Ranch, formerly the Bihimeyer/Bartruff Ranch. She owned the property for only one year and
then sold it to John Marvin and Vivian V. Yowell. Nothing is known about the Yowells and a search revealed that
they were living at Coal Creek in Arapahoe County in 1930. He was a farmer and she worked in the home and
they had one son, Truman. They were living in Missouri according to the 1920s U. S. Federal Census. Itis
presumed that they moved to Castle Rock between 1920 and 1930 and according to the telephone books they
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36.

were living in the house in 1959. John Yowell was born December 23, 1884 in Monroe City, Missouri. He lived in
Missouri most of his life. He and Vivian married, probably in Missouri, around 1919. John passed away on
December 31, 1964, but his wife remained living in the house until 1976. After his death, the house was owned
solely by his wife, Vivian, who sold the property to her son in 1974, but continued to live there. In 1977, her
name is no longer listed in the phone books. She died in 1985 in Routt County. Her son Truman sold the house
to Louis J. and Josephine A. Blanc in 1976.

Louis J. Blanc was the son of Michele and Anna Blanc. They lived in Denver in the 1930s and Louis was a stock
salesman. He metJosephine in Greeley while he was working for Mountain Bell Telephone Company and she
was working for J. C. Penney. They married in 1938 and moved to Castle Rock in 1957 when he became the
Mountain Bell manager for Douglas and Elbert Counties. They moved into 519 Gilbert and lived there from 1958
to approximately 1966 - 1969. They then moved to 612 Gilbert where they lived until 2002. The Blancs opened
Castle Rock Florist in 1968 and also owned and operated the Castle Pines Motel. They purchased this 422 Elbert
in 1976 and sold itin 1978.

The house was purchased by William S. and Kathryn A. Gray but was not listed in the phone books as their home
until 1985, for one year. Itis thought that William and Kathryn divorced or she passed away because in 1979 the
title of the property reverted to his name only. William Gray sold the property to William Field in 1986.
According to the Castle Rock phone books, Field lived at 4179 W. Dawson Road from 1980 to 1990, thus never
living in the house. He sold the house to William E. Murray in 1988. and Murray sold it to the current owner,
Jennifer C. Crumm in 1997.

Sources of Information:
Our Heritage, People of Douglas County (book - Douglas County Research Center), United States Federal Census,
Douglas County News Press 2/25/1998 - pg 9A,

VI. SIGNIFICANCE

37.

38.

Local Landmark Designation: No

Designation Authority: N/A

Date of Designation: N/A

Applicable National Register Criteria:
A. Associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad pattern of our history;
B. Associated with the lives of persons significant in our past;

vi C. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction, or represents the
work of a master, or that possesses high artistic values, or represents a significant and distinguished entity
whose components may lack individual distinction;

0 D. Has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in history or prehistory.

Qualifies under Criteria Considerationa A through G (see Manual).
Does not meet any of the above National Register Criteria.
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38A. 2.18.160 Castle Rock Criteria for Designation:

[L1 A.The character, interest or value of the proposed landmark as part of the development heritage or
cultural characteristics of the town;
B. The proposed landmarks as a location of a significant local, county, state, or national event;

L ¢. The identification of the proposed landmark with a person or persons significantly contributing to the
local, county, state or national history;

D. The proposed landmark as an emodiment of the distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style
valuable for the study of a period, type of method of construction, or the use of indigenous materials, the

use of locally quarried rhyolite rock being of special importance to the Town;
E. The proposed landmark as an identification of the work of an architect, landscape architect or master

builder whose work has influenced the development in the Town, County, State, or Nation;

F. The proposed landmark's architectural, cultural or archeological significance;

G. The proposed landmark as an example of either architectural or structural innovation;

H. The relationship of the proposed landmark to other distinctive structures, districts, or site which would
also be determined to be of historic significance; and

I. The age of the structure. A fifty-year minimum is generally required.

KOO O

39. Area(s) of significance:  Architecture

40.
41.
42.

43,

Period of significance: 1920

Level of signficance: Local

Statement of significance:

This building is significant for its Bungalow style. The Bungalow style characterized the Arts and Crafts
movement and quickly spread across the country in the early 20th century. The typical Bungalow is a one or
one-and one-half story, clapboard wood building with a front gable roof. Occasionally, the building was
constructed of masonry or had a side gable roof. The building had overhanging eaves, broad porches and
simple horizontal lines. The porch is usually supported by battered porch piers or thick columns.

This house has many of those characteristics with the shingle siding, front gable roof, battered porch piers and
the strong horizontal lines expressed through the horizontal trim board at the sill plate and the change of
materials from shingle siding above to horizontal board siding below the board.

Assessment of historic integrity related to significance:

The building's level of integrity, relative to the seven aspects of integrity, as defined by the National Park
Service and the Colorado Historical Society (setting, location, design, materials, workmanship, feeling and
association), has been significantly diminished due to the many changes made to the building. The design,
feeling, association and materials changed extensively when the building was more than doubled in 2006. The
building lost much of its Bungalow characteristics when the second floor was added by the addition of a cross
gable, the horizontal lines associated with the bungalow style and repeated on this house were also lost with
the verticality of the second floor addition.

The building no longer has sufficient integrity to convey its significance for National or State Register eligibility,
but is still significant on a local level as a Castle Rock Landmark, because it meets Criteria |, it is over fifty years
old. The building has lost most of its integrity on the local level also, for the reasons described above, but may
still be eligible for local landmarking because a building may be considered for landmarking after meeting only

one criteria.

VIl. NATIONAL REGISTER ELIGIBILITY ASSESSMENT
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44,

45.

46.

National Register eligibility field assessment: Not Eligible

Local landmark eligibility field assessment: Eligible

Is there National Register district potential: N/A

Discuss: This resource was surveyed and documented as part of a project in which buildings within the

downtown area of Castle Rock were surveyed. The survey area was from Front Street on the
east, to Fifth Street on the north, to Elbert Street on the west and Third Street on the south. The
boundaries of a historic district have not yet been determined since many areas of the Town
have not yet been surveyed. Additionally, this building might be associated with an adjacent
unsurveyed area. A preliminary evaluation of whether this property would be a contributing
resource, if found to be within the boundaries of a district, has been made to assist future

studies.
Is there Local District Potential: N/A
If there is National Register district potential, is this building contributing: N/A
If the building is in existing National Register district, is it contributing: N/A

VHI. RECORDING INFORMATION

47.

48.

49,
51.
52.
53.

Photographic References: 5DA1258_EAST, 5DA1258_SOUTH, 5DA1258_NORTH, 5DA1258_WEST,
5DA1258_ GARAGE

Photographer: Barbara Darden
Negatives Filed At: There are no negatives - photos are digitally reproduced.
Report Title: "Town of Castle Rock - Survey of Historic Resources" (August 29, 2005); Preservation Partnership

Date(s): April 2009 50. Recorders: Barbara Darden
Organization: Scheuber + Darden Architects
Address: 10800 E. Bethany Drive, Suite 380, Aurora, Colorado 80014
Phone Number(s): 303-755-7395
NOTE: Please attach a sketch map, a photocopy of the USGS quad map indicating the resource's location, and photographs

Colorado Historical Society - Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation
1300 Broadway, Denver, Colorado 80203 (303) 866-3395
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